1809 December 19th
The incident

1810 January 9th (Tuesday)

Surrey Quarter Sessions

Be it remembered that at the General Quarter Sessions of the peace of our sovereign Lord the King holden at Saint Mary Newington in and of the county of Surrey on Tuesday in the week next after the feast of the epiphany of our Lord to wit the ninth day of January in the fiftieth year of the reign of our sovereign Lord George the Third by the Grace of God of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland King Defender of the Faith before Arthur Onslow Serjeant at Law……………………………………..the jurors for our Lord the King upon their oath present that John Shelton late of the parish of Saint George the Martyr in the Borough of Southwark in the county of Surrey scavenger Thomas Belcher late of the same labourer and John Gibbons late of the same victualler on the nineteenth day of December in the fiftieth year of the reign of our sovereign Lord George the Third………. with force and arms at the parish of Christchurch in the county aforesaid in and upon James Goddard in the peace of God and our said Lord the King then and there being did make an assault and him the said James then and there did beat wound and ill treat so that his life was greatly despaired of and other wrongs to the said James then and there did to the great damage of the said James and against the peace of our said Lord the King his crown and dignity whereupon the sheriff of the said county was commanded that he omit not by reason of any liberty in the county aforesaid but that he enter it and cause to come the said John Shelton Thomas Belcher and John Gibbons to answer the premises and afterwards to wit at the general Quarter Session of the Peace of our Sovereign Lord the King holden at Saint Mary Newington in and for the county of Surrey on Tuesday in the week next after the feast of the Epiphany of our Lord to wit the ninth day of January in the fiftieth year of the reign of our sovereign Lord George the Third……

1810 March 5th (Monday) 

Surrey Quarter Sessions adjournment

and from thence continued by adjournment to Monday the fifth of March in the fiftieth year aforesaid at Saint Mary Newington aforesaid before William Kenrick Esq……………. come the said John Shelton Thomas Belcher and John Gibbons in their proper persons and having heard the said indictment read severally say that they are not guilty thereof and of this they severally put themselves upon the country and Charles John Lawson Clerk of the Peace for the said county who prosecutes for our said Lord the King in this behalf doth the like therefore let a jury come before the aforesaid justices of the peace to beholden in and for the said county by whom the truth of the  matter may be the better known and inquired into and who etc. to recognize etc. because as well etc. and the same day is given to the said Charles John Lawson who prosecutes for our said Lord the King in the behalf as aforesaid as to the aforesaid John Shelton Thomas Belcher and John Gibbons now here in court at which said next session to wit at the general Quarter Session of the Peace of our sovereign Lord the King holden at Reigate in and for the county of Surrey on Tuesday in the week next after the close of Easter to wit the seventh day of May in the fiftieth year of the reign of our sovereign Lord………… 

1810 May 7th (Monday) 

Surrey Quarter Sessions further adjournment

and from thence continued by adjournment to Monday the seventh day of the same month of May in the fiftieth year aforesaid at Saint Mary Newington in the said county before Arthur Onslow………… and the sheriff of the county hath returned the names of twelve jurors none of whom appear therefore let the sheriff distrain the bodies of the said jurors by their lands and tenements so that he have their bodies at the next general Quarter Session of the Peace to he holden in and for the said county of Surrey to try whether the said John Shelton Thomas Belcher and John Gibbons be guilty of the premises or not and the same day is given as well to the said Charles Lawson who prosecutes for our said Lord the King in this behalf as to the aforesaid John Shelton Thomas Belcher and John Gibbons 

1810 July 10th 

Surrey Quarter Sessions further adjournment??

and afterwards to wit at the General Quarter Session of the Peace of our Sovereign Lord the King holden at Guildford in and for the county of Surrey on Tuesday in the week next after the feast of the translation of Saint Thomas the Martyr to wit the tenth day of July in the fiftieth year of the reign of our sovereign Lord……….

1810 July 16th (Monday)

Surrey Quarter Sessions sentence

and from thence continued by adjournment to Monday the sixteenth day of the same month of July in the fiftieth year aforesaid at Saint Mary Newington in the said county before William Kenrick……….. come as well the said John Shelton Thomas Belcher and John Gibbons the said Charles John Lawson who prosecutes for our said Lord the King on his behalf and the jurors of the jury by the said sheriff of Surrey for the purpose unparalleled? and returned to wit William Green……… being called come and who being chosen tried and sworn to speak the truth of and concerning the premises in the indictment specified do say upon their oath that the said John Shelton Thomas Belcher and John Gibbons are guilty of the trespass and offence in the said indictment specified in manner and form as by the said indictment is alledged against them whereupon it is considered and adjudged by the court here that the said John Shelton and Thomas Belcher and each of them for the said offence be imprisoned in the common gaol of the said county for the space of three months and it is further considered and adjudged by the court here that the said John Shelton Thomas Belcher and John Gibbons and each of them do pay to our Lord the King a fine of ten pounds and that they and each of them be imprisoned in the said gaol until such fine be paid and until they and each of them shall enter into recognizance for their good behaviour respectively for the term of three years themselves to be bound in the sum of one hundred pounds with two sufficient sureties in fifty pounds each surety and the said John Shelton Thomas Belcher and John Gibbons are forthwith committed accordingly

 TNA: HO 47/45/11 f.112 – 114

Affidavit of Gill and Brooks

21 July 1810

The King on the prosecution of James Goddard

against

John Shelton John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher

Surrey to wit – The examinations of John Gill of Great

Suffolk Street in the Borough of Southwark in

the county of Surrey carver and gilder and

Charles Brooks of Collingwood Street Blackfryars

Road in parish of Christ Church in the said county of

Surrey gentleman taken upon oath

before me Sir John Pinhorn Knight

one of His Majesty’s Justices of the Peace in

and for the same county his twenty first

day of July one thousand eight hundred and

ten

First – This examinant John Gill for himself saith

that some four days after he nineteenth day of December

 last the day when the assault took place as sworn to by

the said James Goddard upon the tryal of the above

indictment he this examinant saw the said James

Goddard carrying out beer and about his usual work

and to all appearance without having sustained the least

injury whatever although the said James Goddard upon

the tryal of the said indictment swore in this examinants

hearing that he was confined and unable to do any work

or attend to his business for eight weeks in consequence of

the blows he received and this examinant further saith

that the said James Goddard is a person of a very

quarrelsome disposition and fond of fighting and has

repeatedly sett to and sparred in this examinants presence

with one Coady a prize fighter and a Mr Greenstreet and

others although upon the trial of the said indictment the

said James Goddard swore he never did and this

examinant further saith that about two years since he

this examinant saw the said James Goddard beat and

severely use a person in Robert Street aforesaid and at

another time fight with a person at the Rockingham

Arms in the Kent Road which last mentioned circumstance

the said James Goddard also upon his oath denied upon

the trial of the said indictment and this examinant

further said that the said James Goddard is generally

known in the neighbourhood of Robert Street and answers

to the fighting name of Jemmy from Town which he

also denied upon the said tryal and this examinant

Charles Brooks for himself saith that sometime

in February one thousand eight hundred and eight he

this examinant and the said James Goddard fought

together in Robert Street opposite the Coach Makers Arms

in consequence of a dispute that originated in the said

house and that the said James Goddard goes by and

answers to the fighting name of Jemmy from Town

and is a very low insulting quarrelsome character

John Gill

Charles Brooke

Sworn by both examinants before me at Union Hall Southwark John Pinhorn
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Affidavit of John Towsey

21 July 1810

The King on the prosecution of James Goddard

against

John Shelton John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher

Surrey to wit – the examination of John Towsey of Collingwood Street

Charlotte Street Blackfriars Road stone mason take upon

oath before me William Houlston esquire one of his

Majesty’s Justices of the Peace in and for the said county

this twenty first day of July one thousand eight hundred

and ten

First – this examinant saith that he being on duty

on the nineteenth day of December last at the Watch House of

Christ Church Blackfryars Road as the constable of the night he

this examinant was requested by some person who came to the

Watch House on the above night between the hours of eleven and

twelve o’clock to go to Charles Street nearly opposite and upon this

examinants going there he found a number of people assembled

among whom was James Goddard the prosecutor with his coat off

and in dispute with the above names John Shelton John Gibbons

and Thomas Belcher and that this examinant is positive no

person then present had their coats off excepting the said James

Goddard and that he saw the said James Goddard the next day

at the house known by the sign of the Coachmakers Arms in

Robert Street kept by his brother in law Thomas Gates when he

the said James Goddard drew this examinant some malt liquor

and transacted the business of the house in his usual manner

and which he has since so continued to do without being in

anyway prevented by the alledged assault and this examinant

further saith the he has heard and believes the said James

Goddards character to be that of a quarrelsome fighting man

and this examinant further saith that on the said nineteenth

day of December upon the said James Goddard John Shelton

John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher arriving at the Watch House

he this examinant considering the assault of a trivial nature

recommended the parties present to meet at the house of

the said Mr Gates in Robert Street aforesaid on the night

following for the purpose of drinking together and settling the

affray which the parties consented to do and in consequence

thereof no charge was taken by this examinant and this

examinant further saith that he met all the parties at the

said Mr Gates House on the next evening when a Mr Roupell

one of the witnesses on the part of the prosecution insisted on

the law having its course and would not permit the prosecution

to settle the same

John Towsey

Sworn before me at Union Hall Southwark

William Houlston
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Affidavit of Hindson Grove & Faulkner

21 July 1810

The King on the prosecution of James Goddard

against

John Shelton John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher

Surrey to wit – the examination of Richard Hindson of Great George

Street Blackfriars Road in the County of Surrey officer to the

Sheriff of Surrey Richard Groves of the same place and

Robert Faulkner of Edward Street Blackfriars Road aforesaid

Officer to the sheriff of Surrey taken upon oath before me

William Houlston esquire one of His Majesty’s Justices of the Peace

in and for the same county this twenty first day of July one

thousand eight hundred and ten

First – this examinant Richard Hindson for himself saith

that on account of his being an officer to the sheriff of Surrey and

keeping a house for the safe custody of debtors he is in the

habit of having great quantities of porter brought to his house from

the house of Thomas Gates the Coachmakers Arms where the

prosecutor James Goddard acts as a potboy and assistant and in

consequence whereof he this deponent has constantly and almost

daily seen the said James Goddard bring beer to the house of this

examinant in his usual and customary way of business without

any apparent bodily injury both before and subsequent to the

nineteenth of December last and up to within a few days of the

present time and this examinant further saith that the said

James Goddard is known and commonly called by the fighting

name of Jemmy from Town in the neighbourhood of the Coach

Makers Arms notwithstanding the said James Goddard swore

otherwise upon the trial of the above indictment and that he

had been confined (and unable to attend to any business in

consequence of the blows he received) for eight weeks and this

examinant further saith that the following night after the affray

took place this examinant called at the Coach Makers Arms and

drank three shillingsworth of wine and water with the said James

Goodard who was then assisting in the bar of the Coach Makers

Arms aforesaid and this examinant further saith the said James

Goddard is a well known quarrelsome and fighting character

And this examinant Richard Groves for himself saith that he being

an assistant officer to the said Richard Hindson he has seen the said

James Goddard almost every day subsequently to the nineteenth of December

last and within a few days up to the present time bring porter

from the house of the said Thomas Gates to the house of the said

Richard Hindson without having sustained any apparent injury

so as to prevent him going about his usual business and this

examinant further saith that the said James Goddard is known

by the fighting name of Jemmy from Town in the neighbourhood

of Robert Street and to which name this examinant has heard

the said James Goddard answer when so called and that he the

said James Goddard is a well known quarrelsome fighting character

and this examinant Robert Faulkner for himself saith that on

account of his being also an officer to the sheriff of Surrey and

keeping a house for the safe custody of debtors he is also in the

habit of taking a great quantity of porter from the house of the said

Thomas Gates to whom the said James Goddard acts as potboy

and that ever since the nineteenth day of December last being the

day when the alledged assault was made upon the said James

Goddard up to the present time he the said James Goddard has

almost daily as occasion required brought beer to his this examinants

house for the use of such persons as were occasionally confined

therein and has attended his business as usual without having

sustained any apparent injury and this examinant never heard

or knew neither does he believe the said James Goddard was ever

confined on account of the assault sworn by him to have been

committed by the said John Shelton John Gibbons and Thomas

Belcher and this examinant further saith that the said James

Goddard is commonly know called and answers to the fighting

name of “Jemmy from Town” and to which name this examinant

has frequently heard the said James Goddard answer when so called

and that the said James Goddard is continually in the habit of

sparring and putting himself in the attitude of fighting and which

this examinant had frequently seen him do with various persons although

the said James Goddard swore on the trial of the said indictment and in

the hearing of this examinant to the contrary

Rd Hindson

Rd Grove

Robert Faulkner

Sworn at Union Hall Southwark before me William Houlston
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Affidavit of Thomas Taylor

21/23 July 1810

The King on the prosecution of James Goddard

against

John Shelton John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher

Surrey to wit the examinations of Thomas Taylor of Great

Charlotte Street Blackfryars Road in the County of

Surrey baker John Folkard of Great Surrey Street

Blackfryars Road in the said county silversmith

James Whitaker of Commerce Row Blackfryars Road

aforesaid hatter John Spiller of Blackfryars Road

aforesaid vintner John Green of Great George Street

Blackfryars Road engine maker Lewis Troughton

of George Street Blackfryars Road aforesaid looking

glass manufacturer taken upon oath before one or more

of His Majesty’s Justices of the Peace acting in and for the

county of Surrey

First these examinants severally and respectively make

oath and say that they have known the said James Goddard to

act as pot boy and assistant at the Coach Makers Arms in

Robert Street Blackfryars Road for some considerable time past

and that they recollect some few days after the affray took place

between the said James Goddard and the said John Shelton

John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher to have seen the said James

Goddard carrying out his beer collecting pots and doing other

his necessary business as pot boy and assistant at the Coach

Makers Arms aforesaid and which he has continued to up to

the present time and therefore it is impossible the said James

Goddard could have been confined for eight weeks as sworn

on the trial of the said indictment by the said James Goddard

and these examinants James Whitaker and John Green for

themselves severally further make oath and say that the said

James Goddard is well know and answers to the fighting

name of “Jemmy from Town” when called by that name and

is of a low quarrelsome disposition and fond of sparring

And this examinant John Spiller for himself

saith that he saw the said James Goddard the night after

the affray took place in the bar of the said public house known

by the sign of the Coach Makers Arms in Robert Street aforesaid

he this examinant having gone there for the express purpose

of endeavouring to accommodate the matter between the said

parties and that a Mr Roupell one of the witnesses on the part

of the prosecution then present would not suffer or permit the

said James Goddard to accommodate or settle the same

Thomas Taylor

John Folkard

James Whitaker

J Spiller

Lewis Houghton

George Green

Sworn by the examinants

John Folkard James Whitaker

John Spiller and Lewis Troughton

and George Green

this twenty first day of July 1810

before me at Union Hall Southwark

William Houlston

Sworn by the examinant John

Taylor this twenty third day

of July 1810 before me

at Union Hall Southwark

P Broadley
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The King on the prosecution of James Goddard

v John Shelton and others

Affidavit in support of defendant Shelton’s petition

23 July 1810

The King on the prosecution of James Goddard

against

John Shelton John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher

for an assault

Surrey to wit – The examination of John Shelton of Great Suffolk Street

Saint George the Martyr Southwark in the County of Surrey

Scavenger now a prisoner in the county gaol of the county

of Surrey John Gibbons of Great Suffolk Street aforesaid

victualler and Thomas Belcher of Water Street

Soho in the county of Middlesex now also a prisoner in

the said county gaol of Surrey taken upon oath before me

David King one of His Majesty’s justices of

the peace acting in and for the said county of Surrey the

23rd day of July in the year one thousand eight

hundred and ten

First these examinants John Shelton John Gibbons

and Thomas Belcher for themselves say that on the nineteenth day of

December last these examinants having been out together by chance met

with Mr Christopher Jackson a clerk in the steel yard in Upper

Thames Street London who after being with these examinants some

short time they all at once missed him and supposing he had gone

up Charles Street in Blackfriars Road Christ Church Surrey to call on

an acquaintance of his residing there the examinants John Shelton

and John Gibbons proceeded on the one side of the street and the said

other examinant Thomas Belcher on the other side of the said street

who stopped and was looking up at the number on the door of one

of the houses in the same street in order to his being sure he was

right as to the number of the house before he knocked at the door at

which time one James Goddard then a total stranger to these examinants

and who is an assistant and acts in the character of a pot boy to one

Thomas Gates his brother in law who keeps a public house called the

Coach Makers Arms in Robert Street Christ Church aforesaid was coming

down the street on the same side of the way on which the said examinant

Thomas Belcher stood and pushed violently against the examinant Thomas

Belcher which drove him violently against the wall upon which the

examinant Thomas Belcher addressing himself to the said James Goddard

and what did you do that for that the said James Goddard answered

what that to you Blackguard upon which the examinant Thomas

Belcher replied why I am no more a blackguard than you are that

the said James Goddard then said if you say so again I’ll knock

you arse over head in the mud that the examinant Thomas

Belcher again answered and said I do say I am no more a blackguard

than you are that the said James Goddard then damned his eyes

and said he would give it to him and immediately put himself

in a fighting position and was in the act of going to strike at the

examinant Thomas Belcher upon seeing of which the said

examinant John Shelton and John Gibbons then being on the

opposite side of the way stept over to them and observing that the

examinant Thomas Belcher had an umbrella under his arm that

examinant John Shelton took the umbrella from him to enable him

to defend himself and that then the examinant Thomas Belcher

and the said James Goddard set too and began squaring with their

fists at each other when the said examinant Thomas Belcher having retreated

back a little to prevent being struck by the said James Goddard and

as the said James Goddard advanced towards him and was in the

act of striking him – the examinant Thomas Belcher struck the said

James Goddard one blow only in his mouth which made him reel

backwards and he fell with his side steps of one of the houses in the said street and all these

three examinants positively say that that blow was the only blow

that was struck by the examinant Thomas Belcher and that neither

of the examinants John Shelton or John Gibbons in any manner or

way whatever struck touched or molested the person of the said James

Goddard and these examinants further say that an alarm

immediately took place and it being only two or three doors from

the residence of the said Thomas Gates the brother in law of the said

James Goddard a great number of persons came out of his house

And the said James Goddard then seized hold of the examinants

Thomas Belchers collar and insisted upon fighting him thereupon

the examinant Thomas Belcher repeatedly requested him to let go

his hold or that he would knock him down upon which the said James

Goddard then pulled off his coat to fight him when Mrs Gates the sister

of the said James Goddard came out of the public house kept by her

husband laid hold of her brother the said James Goddard and dragged

or forced him away and that soon afterwards the watchman or night

constable being sent for these three examinants were taken to Christ

Church watch house when the said James Goddard charged all these

three examinants with having beat and ill used him and the examinant John Shelton being known by the night constable

John Towsey it was at last agreed by the parties present to meet at the

house of the said Thomas Gates the next night for the purpose of drinking

they accordingly attended at the time and place appointed in order to settle the

affray at which time they saw the said James Goddard when a John

Roupell one of the witnesses on the part of the prosecution

having been informed that the examinant Thomas Belcher was one of the party would

not suffer him the said James Goddard to accommodate or settle the affair and that a few days

afterwards the said James Goddard applied for and obtained a warrant

against these three examinants for an assault and upon the hearing

of the said warrant before the magistrates at Union Hall they

recommended a settlement to take place and advised these examinants

to give a guinea or some such sum of money as a recompense for the

injury he alledged [sic] he had sustained and which these examinants offered

to do but he refused to accept the same and these examinants further

say that they were afterward indicted for the said assault and at the

adjourned quarter sessions of the peace held at Horsemonger Lane Newington

in and for the county of Surrey on Monday the sixteenth day of July

instant were tried and convicted and these examinants further say

that the said James Goddard upon the said trial upon his oath stated

and swore “that on the nineteenth day of December last between eleven

and twelve o’clock at night as he was going along Charles Street Christ

Church aforesaid he accidentally pushed against a person on the path who

he supposed had been knocking at a door where he stood and which

person he did not then known but which turned out to be the examinant

Thomas Belcher and who was then in company with the other two

examinants John Shelton and John Gibbons on the same side of the way

that the examinant Thomas Belcher asked the said James Goddard

what he pushed against him for that the said James Goddard mildly

asked his pardon and without any further provocation that the

examinant Thomas Belcher called him a blackguard son of a bitch

and that then the examinant John Shelton immediately struck him

a violent blow that the examinant John Gibbons struck him another

blow in the body on the left side and that the examinant Thomas

Belcher followed that up and also struck him a blow in the mouth

which knocked him down and which last blow cut his mouth and

that he bled very much and that the effect of the blows he then

received so injured him as to occasion his spitting blood to that

day and that he was confined and unable to do any work or attend to

business afterwards for eight weeks” and these examinants further say

that no medical man or apothecary was examined on the trial of the

said indictment to prove any injury that the said James Goddard

had sustained or that he was at all confined in consequence thereof

and these examinants being indicted together and in one indictment

and no person that they knew being present at the time the assault

happened that these examinants had no possible means of contradicting

any part of the prosecutors statement and they were thereafter all found

guilty of the assault and sentenced by the said court to be imprisoned

in the county gaol of Surrey for the space of three months fined

ten pounds each and to find securities for their good behaviour for

three years and that said court of quarter sessions in consequence

of the ill health of the examinant John Gibbons after having passed the

aforesaid sentence imposed in fine £30 on him £20 whereof was

by direction of the said court afterwards paid over to the prosecutor

James Goddard and the said examinant John Gibbons was thereupon

discharged and the examinants John Shelton and Thoms Belcher

are now in custody pursuant to the sentence [sic] of the said court and

these examinants further say that the said James Goddard upon the

trial of the said indictment was guilty of wilful and corrupt perjury

in the following instances viz by swearing that the examinants John

Shelton and John Gibbons both beat and struck him also in swearing

that he did not after being struck by the examinant Thomas Belcher

pull of his coat to fight him in swearing that he never fought

with a person about five years since at the Rockingham Arms

in the Kent Road – in swearing that he never went by or answered

to the name of Jemmy from Town – in swearing that he never

sparred or was in the habit of sparring with two persons of the name

of Greenstreet and Cody and in swearing also that he was a peaceable

and quiet man and that he never fought or struck a man in his life

time and more particularly in swearing that he was confined and

unable to do any work or attend to his business for eight weeks

from the effect of the blows he received from these three examinants all

which perjuries will as these examinants conceive dearly appear to have

been committed by the said James Goddard upon referring to the

several other affidavits made in support of this petition and this examinant

John Shelton for himself further saith that he is the contractor for cleansing

of the streets and that he holds under the commissioners of sewers of the

City of London, Langbourne, Lime Street and Leadenhall wards, Leadenhall

Market and Bishopsgate Within, Coleman Street, Honey Lane Market and

Cheap ward, Bridewell Precinct, Bridge, Candlewick and Dowgate

wards and London Bridge – that he holds the following other

contracts viz.t  the west and east divisions of the Borough of Southwark

and east hundred of Brixton, the whole of the Clink Liberty,

the Surrey bye roads together with the cartage of the soil from sewers from Lambeth

to Rotherhithe in the county of Surrey and that he in consequence

thereof is necessarily obliged to keep in his employ upwards of fifty

horses and nearly one hundred men in the carrying on and

compleating his aforesaid several contracts and which men so

employed are of a very low and bad description and who therefore

want personally to be looked after in doing their daily labour

and which of course this examinant John Shelton is unable to

do whilst he is under confinement nor can he carry on or be

enabled to perform his several contracts of his  person so imprisoned

and which in all probability will be the ruin of himself and

family

John Shelton

John Gibbons

Thomas Belcher

Sworn at his Majesty’s Gaol in the County of Surrey this twenty third day of July 1810

D. King

TNA: HO 47/45/11 f.123 – 124

Affidavit of James Newbon and Francis Crisp

23 July 1810

The King on the prosecution of James Goddard

against

John Shelton John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher

Surrey to wit – the examinations of James Newbon

of Saint Andrews Hill Doctors Commons

in the City of London Gentleman and

Francis Crisp clerk to James Benton

of Union Street Southwark in the county

of Surrey gentleman taken upon oath

before Peter Broadley

esquire one of His Majesty’s Justices of

the Peace in and for the same county

this twenty third day of July 1810

First the examinant Francis Crisp for himself

saith that the abovenamed prosecutor James Goddard

having sworn amongst other things on the trial of the

above indictment in the hearing of this examinant

that he was a labourer in the India House and

that in consequence of the severe blows he received

on the nineteenth of December last the day when he

swore the assault to have been made upon his person

by the abovenamed John Shelton John Gibbons

and Thomas Belcher that he was confined and

unable to do any work or attend to his business

for eight weeks he this examinant was requested

by the abovenamed James Newbon an attorney

and brother in law of the said John Shelton to go

with him to the India Companys warehouses

for the purpose of ascertaining of what the said

James Goddard swore on the said trial was true

or false which this examinant having consented

so to do he this examinant and the said James

Newbon attended at the Bengal warehouse belonging

to the Honourable East India Company to which

warehouse they were previously informed the said

James Goddard belonged and worked as a labourer

and these examinants Francis Crisp and James

Newbon for themselves upon their oaths say that

upon making enquiry at the Elders office belonging

to the said warehouses they were referred to the Elders

office belonging to the warehouse in Crutched

Friars to which warehouse they were informed

the said James Goddard had been but for

some time past and these examinants further

say that upon one of the clerks in the said office

referring tto the books kept for that purpose

these examinants were informed by the said

clerk that the said James Goddard was not only

at work  in the said warehouse on the nineteenth
day of December last being the day upon which the

alledged assault took place but also on the twentieth

and twenty first days of December last as usual

he obtained leave of absence and returned to

work again on the twenty second day of January

following where he worked until the third day of

February when these examinants were also informed

that the said James Goddard was turned over

to another warehouse belonging to the said East

India Company in Fenchurch Street where these

examinants went and on searching the books of

the said company there found that the said James

Goddard continued to work there until the twenty

third day of February following when he again

obtained leave of absence until on or about the

eighteenth day of June and again from the eighteenth

day of June until the fourth day of July from which

time to the present the said James Goddard has

continued to work at the said lastmentioned warehouse

with the exception as these examinants were then

informed of some few days and these examinants

further say that they endeavoured at the said

office in Crutched Friars to find out the cause

of the said James Goddard having obtained

leave of absence from the twenty second of

December to the twenty second of January when

they were informed by the clerks of the said

office that leave of absence was always given

as a matter of course upon the application

of the individual without any enquiry being

made as to the cause their pay always there

ceasing, but had the said James Goddard

been ill he might have applied to the sick

fund and obtained an allowance of half

a guinea per week with the aid and assistance

of a surgeon belonging to the said warehouse

who attends the respective persons belonging

to the said warehouses at the company’s

expense but to which fund upon

these examinants making enquiry they found

that the said James Goddard had never

applied although he was member thereof

James Newbon

Francis Crisp

Sworn by both the deponents

James Newbon and Francis

Crisp this twenty third day of

July 1810 before me at Union

Hall Southwark

Peter Broadley

TNA: HO 47/45/11 f.111

2 August 1810

Sir,

I beg leave to trouble you with the petition and papers herewith

sent on behalf of John Shelton a very industrious and honest neighbour

of mine who has been unfortunately convicted of an assault at the

late Surrey Sessions and sentenced to pay a fine of £10 to be

imprisoned for 3 months in Horsemonger Lane and to find sureties

for his good behaviour for 3 years. Not having been present

at the trial I cannot pretend to state the evidence that was

given, but the sentence certainly does seem to be a severe

one, particularly I have great reason to believe that the

principal witness imposed upon the court by overstating what

passed as well as his own sufferings upon the occasion.

The petition is signed by some of the most respectable persons

in the Borough of Southwark, and many of those persons who

have made the depositions accompanying the petition are well

known to me and are persons that I verily believe would

not be guilty of stating anything that was untrue.

Under these circumstances and a firm belief that imprisonment

will be attended with ruin to Shelton in his very extensive

engagements with the public I have presumed to request that

you will have the goodness to lay the petition and papers

before the Secretary of State for his consideration, upon the perusal

of which I humbly hope that he will be induced to

recommend Shelton to His Majesty’s royal clemency as far

as relates the imprisonment, as he has fifty horses at work

in his business of a scavenger, and is in that line necessarily obliged

to employ about 100 persons of a very low description who of

course require to be very strictly attended to.

I have the honour to be, with great respect

Your very faithful and obedient servant

William Jones marshal

King’s Bench 2nd August 1810

John Beckett Esquire
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[to] William Jones Esq.

Horsemonger Lane Gaol

6 August 1810

Sir,

I really am ashamed to trouble you again respecting me unfortunate situation 

but I hope you will excuse me considering the difficulties I labor under thro’

being kept in confinement. Mrs Shelton has hitherto endeavoured to conceal

from me the conduct of my men but things have now come to such a

crisis that utter ruin must inevitably ensue should I remain but a few

days longer in confinement, in order to convince you of which I cannot

help mentioning the following instances of their misconduct: on Friday last

I had 3 teams of horses brought home at 10 o’clock in the morning on

account of the men having neglected their business and got drunk

and on the same day I had a horse thrown down in one of the carts

through the wilful negligence of the men that cost me but 3 months back

£70 and which I am now informed is totally ruined added to this the

men had on Saturday last the impudence knowing my situation and that

under the circumstances I could not resist their demand to insist on an

advance in wages and I am this moment informed that a dust cart

came into the year this morning loaded with rubbish instead of dust and 

upon the men being remonstrated with left the same and went away drunk

- in the course of last week the men only collected 40 chaldren of dust

instead of 100 the usual quantity at this time of the year for the privilege

of collecting which in the City only I paid into the Chamberlain’s office on Midsummer

day last the sum of £677 – 1 – 0  and engaged to cleanse the streets of 11 wards in the City

· I have now been in confinement 21 days and am certain that it has not been less than

from £10 and £12 per day loss to me during that time. I am informed Sir could you

but spare the time to do what I am ashamed in presuming to ask that of waiting

in person either upon the Secretary of State or Mr Beckett it might be the means

of forwarding an answer to my petition and relieve me from an anxiety almost

unsupportable. I am Sir with great respect

Your obliged and obedient servant

John Shelton
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Petition of John Shelton [procured?] August 7th and reported August 8th W. Kenrick

To the King’s most excellent Majesty

The humble petition of John Shelton of Great Suffolk Street Southwark in the County of Surrey scavenger now a prisoner in the

County Gaol of Surrey

Sheweth

That on the nineteenth of December last your petitioner with John Gibbons of Great Suffolk Street aforesaid victualler and one Thomas Belcher having been out

together by chance met with Mr Christopher Jackson a clerk in the steel yard in Upper Thames Street London who after being with them some short time they all at one missed

him and supposing he had gone up Charles Street in Blackfriars Road Christchurch Surrey to call on an acquaintance of his residing there your petitioner and the

said John Gibbons proceeded on the one side of the street and the said Thomas Belcher on the other side of the street who stopped and was looking up at the

number on the door of one of the houses in the same street in order to his being sure he was right as to the number of the house before he knocked at the door at

which time one James Goddard then a total stranger to your petitioner the said John Gibbons or the said Thomas Belcher and who is an assistant and acts in the

character of potboy to one Thomas Gates his brother in law who keeps a public house called the Coach Makers Arms in Robert Street Christchurch aforesaid was coming

down the street on the same side of the way on which the said Thomas Belcher stood pushed violently against the said Thoms Belcher and drove him violently against

the wall upon which the said Thomas Belcher addressing himself to the said James Goddard said what did you do that for that the said James Goddard answered what is

that to you you blackguard upon which the said Thomas Belcher replied why I am no more a blackguard than you are that the said James Goddard then said to the said

Thomas Belcher that if he said so again he would knock him over head into the mud and used a very vulgar and indecent expression that the said Thomas Belcher again

answered and said I do say I am no more a blackguard than you are that the said James Goddard then damn’d his eyes and said he would give it to him and

immediately put himself in a fighting position and was in the act of going to strike the said Thomas Belcher upon the seeing of which your petitioner and the said

Gibbons then being on the opposite side of the way stept over to them and observing that the said Thomas Belcher had an umbrella under his arm your petitioner

took the umbrella from him to enable him to defend himself and that then the said Thomas Belcher and the said James Goddard set to and began sparring with

their fists at each other when the said Thomas Belcher after having retreated back a little to prevent being struck by the said James Goddard and as the said James

Goddard advanced towards him and was in the act of striking him the said Thomas Belcher struck the said James Goddard one blow only in his mouth which made

him reel and he fell with his side on the steps of one of the houses in the said street and your petitioner saith that that blow was the only blow struck by the

said Thomas Belcher and that either your petitioner or the said John Gibbons in any manner or way whatever struck touched or molested the person of the said James

Goddard That an alarm immediately took place and it being only two or three doors from the residence of the said Thomas Gates the brother in law of the said James

Goddard a great number of persons came out of his house and the said James Goddard then seized hold of the said Thomas Belcher’s collar and insisted upon fighting

him whereupon the said Thomas Belcher repeatedly requested him to let go his hold or that he would knock him down again upon which the said James Goddard then

pulled off his coat to fight him when Mrs Gates the sister of the said James Goddard came out of the public house kept by her husband laid hold of her brother

the said James Goddard and dragged or forced him away and that soon afterwards the watchman or night constable being sent for your petitioner and the said John

Gibbons and Thomas Belcher were taken to Christchurch Watch House when the said James Goddard charged your petitioner the said John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher

with having beat and ill used him when at length your petitioner being known by the night constable John Towsey it was agreed by the parties then present to

meet at the house of the said Thomas Gates the next night for the purpose of drinking together and settling the affray that your petitioner accompanied by the said

John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher accordingly attended at the time and place appointed in order to settle the affray at which time they saw the said James Goddard when

a Mr Roupell one of the witnesses on the part of the prosecution having been informed that Thomas Belcher was one of the party would not suffer him the said

James Goddard to accommodate or settle the affair That a few days afterwards the said James Goddard applied for and obtained a warrant against your petitioner

the said John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher for an assault and upon the hearing of the said warrant before the magistrates at Union Hall they recommended a

settlement to take place and advised your petitioner to give him a guinea or some such sum of money as a recompence for the injury he alledged he had

sustained and which your petitioner offered to do but he refused to accept the same

That your petitioner together with the said John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher were afterwards indicted for the said assault and at the adjourned Quarter

Sessions of the Peace held at Horsemonger Lane Newington in and for the County of Surrey on Monday the sixteenth day of July instant were tried and convicted and upon

the said trial the said James Goddard upon his oath stated and swore that on the nineteenth day of December last between eleven and twelve o’clock at night as he

was going along Charles Street Christchurch aforesaid he accidentally pushed against a person on the path who he supposed had been knocking at a door where he stood and

which person he did not then known but which turned out to be the said Thomas Belcher and who was then in company with your petitioner and the said John Gibbons on

the same side of the way that Belcher asked the said James Goddard what he pushed against him for That the said James Goddard mildly asked his pardon and

without any further provocation the said Thomas Belcher called him a blackguard son of a bitch and that then your petitioner immediately struck him a violent blow

that the said John Gibbons struck him another blow in the body on the left side and the Belcher followed up and also struck him a blow on the mouth

which knock’d him down and which last blow cut his mouth and that he bled very much and that the effect of the blows he then received so injured him as to occasion

his spitting of blood to that day and that he was confined and unable to do any work or attend to his business afterwards for eight weeks

That your petitioner with the said John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher being indicted together in one indictment and no person that they knew being present at

the time the assault happened had no possible means of contradicting any part of the prosecutors statement and they were therefore all found guilty of the assault and 

sentenced by the said court to be imprisoned in the County Gaol of Surrey for the space of three months fined ten pounds each and to find sureties for their good

behaviour for three years That the said Court of Quarter Sessions in consequence of the ill health of the said John Gibbons after having passed the aforesaid sentence imposed

a fine of thirty pounds on him twenty pounds whereof was by direction of the said court afterwards paid over to the prosecutor James Goddard and the said John Gibbons

was thereupon discharged but your petitioner and the said Thomas Belcher are now in custody pursuant to their sentence.

That your petitioner charges that the said James Goddard upon the trial of the said indictment was guilty of wilful and corrupt perjury in the

several instances stated in the affidavits annexed to this petition.

That your petitioner is the contractor for cleansing the streets and holds under the Commissioners of the Sewers of the City of London Langbourne Lime Street

and Leadenhall Wards Leadenhall Market and Bishopgate Within Coleman Street Ward Stoney Lane and Cheap Ward Bridewell Precinct Bridge Ward

Candlewick and Dowgate Wards and London Bridge That he also holds the following other contracts videlicit the West and East division of the Borough of

Southwark and East half hundred of Brixton the whole of the Clink Liberty the Surrey Bye Roads together with the cartage of the soil from the sewers from

Lambeth to Rotherhithe And that he is in consequence thereof necessarily obliged to keep in his employ upwards of fifty horses and nearly one hundred men in

the carrying on and completing his aforesaid several contracts and which men so employed are of a very low description and who therefore want personally to

be looked after in doing their daily labour and which of course your petitioner is unable to do whilst he is under confinement nor can he carry on or be enabled

to perform and several contracts if his person is imprisoned and which in all probability will the ruin of himself and family.

Under these circumstances your petitioner most humbly prays that your Majesty will be graciously pleased to take this your petitioners case

into consideration and remit the sentence so passed on him as to any further imprisonment of his person or grant unto your petitioner such other

relief in the premises as to Your Majesty shall seem meet

And your petitioner shall ever pray etc.

John Shelton
TNA: HO 47/45/11 f.102

Temple 8 August 1810

Sir,

In obedience to His Majesty’s command

requesting?

 to me in your letter of the 7th inst.

I have the honour to report to you the case of

John Shelton tried before me and other His

Majesty’s Justices of the County of Surrey on the

16 of last month

I am

Sir

Your obedient servant

W Kenrick

Temple August 8 1810

The Rt Honourable

Richard Ryder
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Temple 8 August 1810

W. Kenrick

Report on the case of John Shelton

John Shelton John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher

were tried before me and several other magistrates

of the county of Surrey on the 16 of last month

and found guilty of an assault on James Goddard

on the 19 of December last

The first witness was the prosecutor James Goddard

who stated that he left the house of his brother

in law the Coachmakers Arms about [half?] past eleven

to go home that he passed through Charles Street

and saw the three defendants there one knocking

at Wise’s door that he brushed their cloaths

in passing accidentally that they used abusive

language to him and that he begged their pardon

for accidentally brushing against them that

immediately all then fell on him and struck him

that Shelton struck him first on the side of the head

Gibbons on the side and that Belcher struck him

on the face which knocked him down on the step

of the door that a Mr Snell came up a Mr Roupel

came up Mr Jupp picked him up that

Mr Leach came up

On his cross examination

he stated that it was a moon light night

that he could see but not every thing that passed

that he saw the three persons when he passed

them that they were all on the same side of

the way that he cannot be positive which of

their cloaths he brushed against in passing that

he did not call them blackguards or use abusive

language that he is positive one was knocking

at the door that all struck him but Belcher the hardest

and that his blow cut his lip that the constable

of the night was at the Watch House when they were there

that he did not shake hands with either of the

prisoners there that he never fought men

at the Rockingham Arms that he went to the

Watch House that he went home that he

never stripped off his cloaths to fight or challenged

Belcher to fight or squared at him

On his re-examination 

he stated that he was senseless on the step and that

he is positive he did not strip to fight Belcher that

night or the next day

The next witness was Mr Snell who stated that

he lived at no.20 Charles Street that Wise lives

at no.21 in the same street that it is a bad house that he saw Goddard

come up the street that all three of the

defendants were then there that he did not then know

who they were but that the three men at the

bar were the three persons who were there but

that they were all by Wise’s door one of them

knocking at it that the same one of them knocked

Goddard down that he was not five steps off

that he did not hear Goddard say any thing

abusive or give any provocation that one

of them Shelton came squaring at him upon

which he entered within his own house and locked

the door.

On his cross examination he stated that

it was a moon light night that he had been

at the Carpenters Club (a club which had been held

that night at the Coachmaker’s Arms) that all three

defendants were together but that he could not

say whether Belcher had or had not an umbrella under

his arm and that he could not particularly say which of

the three struck the blow which knocked Goddard down

The next witness was Mr Jupp who stated

that he was passing through the street and had been at the

Carpenter’s Club that he saw the three men standing

together on the same side of the way that they

extended to the edge of the curb that the path

would not admit of more than three that he

heard one of them Belcher say you are a blackguard

damned son of a bitch and Goddard beg his pardon and say

he was no more blackguard than himself that

Shelton then struck Goddard and Belcher struck Goddard

that he the witness stepped up caught hold of Goddard 

and helped him up that he had known Goddard before

that Shelton came up to him and said what you

are this second are you I will serve you in the

same way

On his cross examination he stated he could

not say these were the first words that had passed

or that there might not have been others that

Goddard arrived up with them soon after he had

turned the corner of the street which might be

100 yards off that Shelton struck the first blow

Belcher afterwards that Goddard did not stay

to fight that he the witness did not return

to the public house that Shelton had an

umbrella but that he did not see Belcher with one

that he is positive Goddard did not strip to fight

that he went with them to the Watch House that

no perjury? was termed or any think like it or

of the kind

Mr Leach was the next witness called who stated

he saw all the three defendants ill use Goddard

and that Belcher knocked him down that he could not

be certain that he saw the urgency of it and he confirmed

the preceding testimony

Mr Roupel was the next witness called who stated

that he did not know that he saw the urgency of it

and he confirmed the preceding testimony

I did not take the evidence of the last two witnesses

more fully because I was previous to their being

called approved by the counsel for the defendants that

they should not call any witnesses after the evidence

which had been given by Snell and Jupp

But from my own recollection I can state

that their evidence negatived the idea that Goddard

had ever taken his coat off to fight or for any other

purpose I can speak also from any recollection

that Goddard did himself state in his evidence in chief

that he had spat blood up to that day and had been

unable to do his work for several weeks in consequence

of the blow This I had not taken in my notes having

sufficient before to show it was a violent assault and the

trial being an indictment when the injury the party suffers

is not as in an action for damages the measure of the

punishment which in an indictment ought I conceive to be

measured by the offence against the public peace with

a view to prevent the like again

Upon their evidence the three defendants

were severally found guilty and following which their

counsel was addressing the jury that such must be the

event and being desirous for the impression it would

make on the public that the sentences should if they

were found guilty be passed immediately I wrote down

the sentence I proposed and handed it round to the court

(consisting of 11 magistrates I think) when their counsel had closed his address and some time previous to my addressing

the jury. And I understood there was no difference of opinion

in the court immediately after the jury returned their verdict

of guilty which they did without hesitation I passed the

sentence of three months imprisonment fine of £10

and securities to keep the peace £100 themselves upon two sureties

in 50 [£?] each on each of the defendants and afterwards upon

the earnest application of the defendants counsel and

it being made to appear by the testimony of two medical

men that confinement would endanger the life of the

defendant Gibbons his sentence was commuted for

a larger fine and a sum to be paid to the use of the prosecutor

The court sat several hours afterwards and after the court had risen I was

just informed that three of the magistrates who had been present

entertained an opinion that no imprisonment or? that less

imprisonment with a heavier fine ought to have been

the sentence on Shelton on account of the injury that

imprisonment would do him in his private concerns

Some days after the Sessions at the counsels requests

of this defendants counsel I read the affidavits and petition

now sent to me and I then informed him that I had read and considered

them attentively and that I did nevertheless remain satisfied

both of the propriety of the verdict and of the sentence

I have again read the petition affidavits and seen the

certificates and most agreeable as it always is to me when

able to impart in favour of mercy and not less painful to report

against it I cannot upon the fullest and most mature consideration

say that I think either the verdict wrong or that the assault

committed by such men and under such circumstances as an

offence against the public peace has been visited with too

severe a punishment.

It is not an immaterial circumstance that Towsey

who alone speaks to any fact material to the issue on this

indictment has made an affidavit This man it appears by the

affidavits was known to Shelton he might have been called as a

witness and subjected to cross examination and an indictment for

perjury if he foreswore himself that is not the case in respect

of his affidavit then he runs no risk of indictment be it ever so false

and after the testimony given by the witness at the trial I cannot

bring myself to believe of his affidavit that it is otherwise than that it is

false (and if false Shelton must know it to be so) in respect of Goddards

coat being off and which after all tho’ it appears to me he must mean

that inference should be drawn from what he says he does not say

his coat was off with any view to fight.

On the other hand I am bound to state that if I thought the matter

turned on the evidence of the prosecutor Goddard I should be

doubtful of the propriety both of the verdict and certainly of the sentence

because from what is declared by the affidavits I do believe that

in respect of his inability to do his work in consequence of the blows

and of his not having fought a man at the Rockingham Arms he has

sworn what is not true In respect however of what is stated

of his being a quarrelsome fellow and called Jemmy from Town the

inferences I have made in consequence of seeing the affidavits some days ago induce

me to believe that no stress whatsoever ought to be laid upon these

circumstances I entertain great doubts if he is a quarrelsome man

or so called on the result of such enquiries and if quarrelsome disposition

is to weigh at all then is on the evidence of Snell and Jupp positive

testimony that Shelton menaced each of them with assault on the night

the assault on Goddard was committed.

Goddards evidence is materially shaken in my mind but put

that out of the question I do still think that the weight of evidence

declared by the evidence on the trial and by the affidavits is that to

gross wanton and unprovoked assault was committed and that

the verdict was right and the sentence not too severe if however

this is not the correct conclusion and it shall be thought

that the assault was either not wanton or not unprovoked

it must be thought that the sentence is too severe and upon

which of these conclusions is the proper one depends the

question whether the prisoner is or is not an object

for His Majesty’s Royal Mercy

W Kenrick

Chairman of the Sessions

in the absence of Mr Serj Onslow

on the other? trial

Temple August 1810
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King’s Bench 8 August 1810

Sir,

I really am quite ashamed to trouble you so often upon

Mr Shelton’s account, but hope that my wishes to save

An honest man from utter ruin will plead my cause.

I received the letter herewith enclosed from him on Monday last,

and have since taken some pains to satisfy myself with the

truth of his statement, which I find to be perfectly correct.

I therefore hope and trust that the Secretary of State will

have the goodness to take his case into his consideration,

and that he will exercise his humanity in rescuing

this truly distressed man from his impending ruin.

I have the honor [sic.] to be, with great respect,

Sir, your very obliged and obedient servant

William Jones

Kings Bench

8th August 1810

Samuel Beckett, Esquire

? ? ?

TNA: HO 47/45/11 f.127 – 130

[no date]

We whose names are hereunder written do

hereby certify that we have know the petitioner

John Shelton for some considerable time past

carry on a very extensive business as a scavenger

viz holds the following parishes the East and West

Divisions of the Borough of Southwark and East

Half Hundred of Brixton the Clink Liberty

Southwark and the Bye Roads the carting of

the soil of the whole shores from Lambeth to

Rotherhithe and eleven wards in the City of

London under the Commissioners of the Sewers

and have every reason to believe should he be

kept much longer in confinement it will be

attended with the total ruin of himself and

family 

Joseph Cooper
church
William Jones 
Marshal
Kings Bench

Thomas Cossworth?
wardens
William Russell
Vestry Clerk

Abraham Putley
&
Thomas Cooke
Leatherseller, Boro

T Haple?
overseers
W? Hurst
Parish Clerk, Boro

Daniel Searle
of Saint George
Samuel Stead
Leatherseller, Boro


Southwark
Thomas Burbidge
Hatter, Boro

Samuel Carter
Tallow chandler, Borough
Roper & Green
Grocers, Boro

John Smith
Auctioneer, same
James Freeman
Cheesemonger, Boro

Henry Lindsey
same
J.P.Careless
Seedsman, Boro

Joseph Warburton
same, Horse dealer
Isaac Dent
Hatter, Boro

Thomas B. Collinson
Oil & colour man.?, Boro
J. Shepherd
Horse dealer, Boro

Thomas J. Old
Chemists, Boro
William Angus
Clerk, Papers ? Book

P. Irish

Thomas Lovell
Boro



Thomas Day
Clerk Commissioners? Income?

John Lee
Attorney 3 Crown Court, Boro
Joseph Stearns 
linendraper

John Warwick
Hop factor 3 Crown Court, Boro
William Frond
Monckgate

John Clutton, attorney, St Thomas Street, Boro
Richard Rowland
Blackfryars Rd

Alcock Corner & Lindsay Attorneys & Treasurers County
John Higgons
Blackfryars Road

Daniel Taylor & Sons, wine and brandy merchants, Boro
James Bursler
Blackfryars Road

J.H.Bridd?? 
stationer boro
John Booth
Blackfryars Road

George Ware
attorney, Lant Street, Boro

John Sheppard senior
horse dealer, Boro

John Brown
attorney, Boro

Samuel Brown
baker, same

William Phillips
grocer, Boro

Thomas Inman
tinman, Boro

John Cahuac
pawnbroker, Boro

Nathaniel Riley
clothier, Blackman Street

Henry Vies
chinaman, Boro

John Shipton
Ironmonger, Boro

B. Moorhoop?
Belvidere Place, Boro

Jos Meymott
Burrows Buildings, Blackfriars Road

H. Chandler
Blackfriars Road

Burnham & Rice
Blackfriars Road

I know several of the persons who have

signed this petition in favor [sic.] of the prisoner

to be respectable inhabitants of the places

described and I beg leave to recommend the

petition to your consideration

Watkin Lawes

Bailiff of the town and borough of Southwark
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We Commissioners of the Pavement of the West

and East division of the Borough of Southwark and

Clink Liberty whose names are hereunder written do

hereby certify that we are fearful of the public

suffering considerable inconvenience should the

petitioner John Shelton remain much longer in

confinement be being contractor for cleansing these divisions

and a substitute could not be obtained without great sacrifices

West Division
East Division
John Ellis Treasurer
Richard Thornton Treasurer
P.? Wrybrants? Broadley
W Chapman

John Toms
William Knight

James Ferguson j.
John Jackson

James Greenwood
Thomas Blackstone

James South
Henry Dudin


Thomas Walker

Clink Liberty
Jos.h Samuel Parhedge
James Gattey

W.Hammack
J. Wood

John Whitehead

Edward Sills?

George Stiles?

Thomas A?????

Thomas Davidson
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Queens Bench 31st August

R. Brinsley Sheridan

Sir,

I am sure you will excuse

the liberty I take in currently requesting

your attention to the accompanying

petition independently of the signatures

of the respectable magistrates who

attest the case, the poor mans

situation is represented to me by a

person who I am confident would

not deceive me and who has stated

many additional circumstances which

convince me that John Shelton is

a proper object for his Majesty’s

clemency and that the further

continuance of his imprisonment

will be his absolute ruin

I have only to add that your early

interference should you deem it right

will greatly oblige your very obedient servant

R.  ?. Sheridan

To the Right Honourable

Richard Ryder
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Petition of John Shelton [end of August 1810]

To the Right Honourable Richard Ryder

Principal Secretary of State for the Home Department

The Humble Petition of John Shelton of Great Suffolk Street Southwark in the County of Surrey

now a prisoner in the County Gaol of Surrey

Sheweth

That your Petitioner together with John Gibbons and

Thomas Belcher having been convicted of an assault upon one James Goddard at the Surrey

Sessions on Monday the 16th day of July last, and sentenced by the court to be imprisoned in the County Gaol

for three months, And whereas a true bill of indictment hath since then been found against

the prosecutor James Goddard, by the grand jury, for perjury in this case, at the Assizes holden for

the County of Surrey at Guildford on Saturday the 18th day of August inst arising out of the evidence given

against your petitioner upon the trial of the said assault, and the said James Goddard was thereupon

committed by the court to the County Gaol of Surrey aforesaid Your petitioner is induced further to urge

his case for your consideration, that in consequence of such circumstances at the assizes relating to the prosecution,

the time of his having already suffered confinement, being above six weeks, and the extensive business in which

he is engaged, namely the contract of scavenger for eleven wards in the City of London, and the whole of the Borough of Southwark, his personal absence from which has greatly inconvenienced the public, and been productive of

very serious losses to your petitioner, he may crave your application to His Majesty for his remission of the remainder

of the sentence as far as relates to the imprisonment

And your petitioner as in duty bound will ever say etc.

John Shelton

We the undersigned magistrates for the County of Surrey beg leave to recommend the above humble

Petition of John Shelton believing the statements therein contained to be correct

Richard Sheridan – Samuel Bulke – Thomas S. Benson – Richard Thornton – Edward Bilky – William Holmes – John Pinhorn – F. Young – D. King – Henry Bunty – Robert Rich – Ebenezer? Collett – Jesse Curdery junior – James Newsome – William Poulman – P. Broadley – Henry Pigeon – Thomas Fish

123 [to check against the other transcript above!!!!]

The King on the presentation of James Goddard

Against

John Shelton John Gibbons and Thomas Belcher

Surrey ? the examinations of James Newbon

of Saint Andrews Hill Doctors Commons

in the City of London Gentleman and

Francis Crisp clerk to James Burton

of Union Street Southwark in the county

of Surrey gentleman that upon oath

before me Peter Broadley

Esquire one of His Majesty’s justices of

the peace in and for the same county

this twenty third day of July 1810

First the examinant Francis Crisp for himself

saith that the above named prosecutor James Goddard

having sworn amongst other things on the trial of the

above indictment in the hearing of this examinant

that he was a labourer in the India House and

that in consequence of the sever blows he received

on the nineteenth of December last the day when he

swore the assault to have been made upon his person

by the abovenamed John Shelton John Gibbons

and Thoms Belcher that he was confined and

unable to do any work or attend to his business

for eight weeks he this examinant was requested

by the abovenamed James Newbon an attorney

and brother in law of the said John Shelton t go

with him to the India Companys warehouses

for the purpose of ascertaining if what the said

James Goddard swore on the said trial was true

or false which this examinant having consented

so to do he this examinant and the said James

Newbon attended at the Bengal warehouse belonging

to the Honourable East India Company to which

warehouse they were previously informed the said
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James Goddard belonged and worked as a labourer

and these examinants Francis Crisp and James

Newbon for themselves upon their oaths say that

upon making enquiry at the Elders office belonging

to the said warehouses they were referred to the Elders

office belonging to the warehouse in Crutched

Friars to which warehouse they were informed

the said James Goddard had been but for

some time past and these examinants further

say that upon one of the clerks in the said office

referring to the books kept for that purpose

these examinants were informed by the said

clerk that the said James Goddard was not only

at work  in the said warehouse on the nineteenth
day of December last being the day upon which the

alledged assault took place but also on the twentieth

and twenty first days of December last as usual

he obtained leave of absence and returned to

work again on the twenty second day of January

following where he worked until the third day of

February when these examinants were also informed

that the said James Goddard was turned over

to another warehouse belonging to the said East

India Company in Fenchurch Street where these

examinants went and on searching the books of

the said company there found that the said James

Goddard continued to work there until the twenty

third day of February following when he again

obtained leave of absence until on or about the

eighteenth day of June and again from the eighteenth

day of June until the fourth day of July from which

time to the present the said James Goddard has

continued to work at the said lastmentioned warehouse

with the exception as these examinants were then
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informed of some few days and these examainants

further say that they endeavoured at the said

office in Crutched Friars to find out the cause

of the said James Goddard having obtained

leave of absence from the twenty second of

December to the twenty second of January when

they were informed by the clerks of the said

office that leave of absence was always given

as a matter of course upon the application

of the individual without any enquiry being

made as to the cause their pay always there

ceasing, but had the said James Goddard

been ill he might have applied to the sick

fund and obtained an allowance of half

a guinea per week with the aid and assistance

of a surgeon belonging to the said warehouse

who attends the respective persons belonging

to the said warehouses at the company’s

expense but to which fund upon

these examinants making enquiry they found

that the said James Goddard had never

applied although he was member thereof

James Newbon

Francis Crisp

Sworn by both the deponents

James Newbon and Francis

Crisp this twenty third day of

July 1810 before me at Union

Hall Southwark

Peter Broadley
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Sir,

I beg leave to trouble you with the petition and papers herewith

sent on behalf of John Shelton a very industrious honest neighbour

of mine who has been unfortunately convicted of an assault at the

late Surry Sessions and sentenced to pay find of £10, to be

imprisoned for 3 months in Horsemonger Lane, and to find sureties

for his good behaviour for 3 years, not having been present

at the trial, I cannot pretend to state the evidence that was

given, but the sentence certainly does seem to be a severe

one, particularly, as I have great reason to believe that the

principal witness imposed upon the court by overstating what

passed as well as his own sufferings upon the occasion.

The petition is signed by some of the most respectable persons

in the Borough of Southwark, and many of those persons who

have made the depositions accompanying the petition are well

known to me, and are persons that I verily believe would

not be guilty of stating anything that was untrue.

Under these circumstances and a firm belief that imprisonment

will be attended with ruin to Shelton in his very extensive

engagements with the public, I have presumed to request that

you will have the goodness to lay the petition and papers

before the Secretary of State for his consideration, upon the perusal
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of which, I humbly hope that he will be induced to

recommend Shelton to his Majesty’s royal clemency so far

as relates to his imprisonment, as he has fifty horses at work

in his business of a scavenger and is in that line necessarily obliged

to employ about 100 persons of a very low description who of

course require to be very strictly attended to.

I have the honor to be, with great respect,

Your very faithful and obedient servant

William Jones Marshal

King’s Bench 2nd August 1810

John Becket Esquire

